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AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporatad in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

TAA, |1AA and PAA are all operators of commercial air transport sarvices which are based In
Thailand, indonesia and the Philippines respactively. These associate companies are strategic
investments of the Company and form an assenfial part of the Company's growth strategy. They
provide access 1o a wider geographical market and netwark coverage in the provision of air
transport services across the Assan region,

Sumenarisad financtal information for associates

Set put below are the summarised financial information for the associates which are accounted for
using the equity method;

Summarised balancs sheat

AAIPL TAS Total
2015 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
RMOO0  RMOOD  RMO0D RMOD0 RMOO0  RMOOD

Current

Cash and cash eguivalents 23168 - 196,162 3BB138 219,221 385,138
Other current assets 738 - B17.874 327400 618,813 327,400
Tolal current assets 239082 - 814028 12538 837534 T13.53R

Financial hakilities

{axcluding {rads payables) {191} - (707,878) (488,618) (708,169) (488,518}
Othar currant llahilitieg

{Including trade payables) - - 15,230 (6,882) {15,230} (6,082}
" Tolal current liahilities {141} - (F23,208) (495,600) {723,299} (495,600

Man-currant

Assets 383 - 1,257,240 338,028 1,257,623  335.029
Financial hakilities - - (FH5,448) (192,089 (705448} {1892,088)
Tatal non-current Habilities - - {(FU5,448) (192,089} (795449) {142,080)
MNet aszets 24,100 - BR2e09 381,88 576,709 381,478
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AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT 1N ASSQCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarisad financial information for assogiates (centinued)

Summarised statement of comprehansive income

Fevenus

Cepractation and amertisation
Intarest Incoma

Intarest exponse

[Loss)/proflt before taxatlon
Income tax expense

Loss)/profit aftar taxation
Other comprehensive Incoms

Total comprehensive income

Dividends received from
ass0ciaies

Recanciliations of summarised financial information

Opening net asssts at 1 January

investment during the financial
year

Impact of adoption of new
slandard on retained earnings

{Loss ) profit for the financial year

Other comprehansive income!
{loss)

Foreign exchange differences

Ordinary shares issued

Closing net assets at
31 Decambar

Interast In assoclates at 48%,
45%

Carrying value at 31 December

AAIPL TAA Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
RMOO0  RMO0OD RMOOC RMO00 RMO00  RMOOO
. - 2,408,378 1,921,34¢ 2 408,378 1,921,340
(4 (38,381) {10.551) (38,385} (10,551)
385 43063 8,372 43448 8372
. 6611 (2,024) (6,611}  (2,024)
(6,298) 263,739 184,202 257341 184,202
- (67,003) (31,891) (67,003} {31,801)
(6,398) 196,648 152,401 190,248 152,401
- 1,307 (338) 1,307 (338)
(6,398) 197,053 152,083 191,556 152,083
AAIPL TAA Total
2013 2012 20149 2012 2013 2012
RMOG0  RAMODO  RMDOO  BNMOOD  RMO00  RMOOD
- 361,878 (54,544) 361,678 (54,544
30,498 40,498
. {2,770) - (2,770)
{6,398 196,646 152,401 190,248 152,401
1,307 (338) 1,307 {358)
(4.452)  {1,881) (4,452}  (1,891]
- 266,050 - 268,050
24,100 552600 0381878 576,700 361,878
11,809 - 248,674 162,845 260,483 162,845
11,809 - 248,674 162,845 260483 162,845
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IM ASSOCIATES [GDNTINUED]

The Group has discontinued the recognfiion of its share of losses made by IAA and PAA as the
Group's inlerasts in I1AA and PAA had been reduced to zero and the Group has not incurfed any
obligatiohs or guarantesd any obligations in respect of these associates. The Group's share of
loszes of |AA and PAA for the current financial year, which have not been equity aseountad for,
amounted to BM35.3 milion and RM36.0 millioh respectively. Az at 31 December 2013, the
unrecognized amolnts of the Group's shars of Insses of IA4 and PAA whish have not been equlty
accounted for amounted o KRM218.5 milllon {2012 BM183.2 mllllnn} and RMB5.8 million (2012:
RMEDE mlllion) respectively,

Acquisition of inferests in associates during the financlal year ended 31 December 2013

On 18 April 2013, the Company, through s wholly-owned subsidiary, AAIL, entered into a
Shareholders’ Agresmeant and a Shars Subscription Agreemant with Tata Sons Limited (TSL"
and Talastra Tradeplace Privats Limited {*Telestra™ for the purposs of farging a joint venture
cooperation between the Company, TSL ang Telestra fo establlsh a low cast aitling in India, ie.
AleAsta {India) Private Limited (FAAIPLT). On that date, AAIL subscribed to 24,500,000 ordinary
shares, representing 49% of the paid-up capital in AAIPL for a consideration of INR245 millian
(equlvatent to RR{14.2 million}.

On 25 March 2013, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, AAIL, acquired additional
interest in AirAsia Japan Co. Ltd (“JAA"} of 24,500 ordinary shares, maintaining the Group’s 45%
interest in JAA far & consideration of JPY1,225 milllen {equivalent to RM41 million}.

Subsequently, on 25 June 2013, the Company tarminated the joint venture on JAA with AMA
Holdings Inc ("ANA") by entering inke a Termination Agresment with JAA and ANA. The total
amount of the issucd. and paid-up share capital of JAA is JFYS,000 millon. The Company had
subscribed, through AAIL, 25120 voling shares and 23,880 non-voling shares at JFYEQ,000 per
shsra, representing 43% of 1he pald-up share capital in JAA. The sharas were disposed to ANA for
a congideration of JPY2,450 milllen {sguivalent to RBA78.3 million}. The resulting gain from the
disposal racognised durlng the financlat year was BM78.3 milllon.

&1



14

17

Company Na,
284569 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporatad in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

e Group _...Company
2013 2012 2M3 2012
R'000 RrO0G RR'GO0 Bh'000
MNof-cyrrent
A1 January 308,792 162,942 295,982 152,942
Reclassified from investments in
associates (Mote 15) - 12,810 - -
Additions - 232,758 - 32,756
Falr valus gain — recognised in
ather comprehensive income 2B5, 788 110,284 265,788 110,284
Impairment loss charged for the
year [Mote §) {2,685)
At 31 Degember 571,885 308,792 561,770 295,982

The Group’s investments in Tune insurance Holdings Berhad {"TIH"), AirAsia X Berhad ("AAX"),
Fltght Fasus Pte Ltd {"Flight Foous”} and Merlot Asro Limited {("Meariot") are classified as avallabie-
for-saie financial assets, '

The Company had in the previous financial year subscribed 42,655,667 Redeemable Convettible
Preference Shares Series 1 of AWM1.00 each ("RCPS") in AAX, On 10 May 2013, the Company
converted the said 42,666,687 RCPS, on one-to-ons basls, into 42,666,667 new Ordinary Shares
of RM1.00 each in the share capital of AAX In accordance with the terms of the RCPS, without
further consideration.

GOODWILL
_ (Sroup
2013 2012
RM'G00 R 000
Cost
At January and 31 December 7,334 7,334
Tha carrying amount of goodwill atlocated to the Group’s cash-genarating unit is as follows:
Group
2013 2012
BAOO0 RAOO00
Cost
AlrAsla Investrment Ld 7354 7.334

7334 7,334

g2
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AIRASIA BERHAD

(Incerporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets and liabifities are offset whan thera is a legally enforceable right to set off
currant tax assets against current tzod llabilities and when deferrad texes rolate to the same tax
autharity. The following ameunts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance
sheoots:

Group ] Campany

2015 2me 2013 2012

ARI'0O0 RM'O00 BRD00 RSOGO

Deferred tax assats 381,185 351,358 381,105 361,398

e | B

The movements in the deferred tax asssts and liabilitiss of the Group and the Company durlng the
financial year are as follows:

CGroup _ -Company
2013 202 2013 2012
AM'DO0 RM 000 RKO00 RRA'D00
At start of financial year 361,305 516,100 381,305 516,151
(Chargedi/credited to
income stataments
(Mote 10)
- Property, plant and
aquipment (B8, 100) {241,753 (B3, 100 241 BOL)
= Tax incentlves ' 88 267 87,049 88,2467 H7 040
- Tax losses (3568) - (358) -
19,799 (154,704) 19,799 {154, 755)
At end of financial year 281,185 361,296 381,188 361,396
Defarrgd tax assats
{befora oifsetting)
Tax incenlives 1,172,799 1,084 532 1,172,799 1,084 /g
Tax los58s 8803 5,171 5,805 9,171

. 1,181,602 1,093,703 1,181,802 1,083,703
Citsetting (800,407 (7A2,307) (800,407 {732,307)

Deferred tax assets
(aftar ofigatting) 381,195 361,506 S81,195 361,308
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorpaorated in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED TAXATION {CONTINUED)

Lroup . Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rl 000 RM'000 R'000 RIO00
Deferrad tax liabililies (befora offsstting)
Praperty, plant and equipment (800,407) (732,307 (B0, 407} (732,307)

Offeatling BOO, 407 732307 800,407 732,307

Doforred tax linbilitles (after offsetting; - . -

As disclosed in Note 3 to the finanelal statements in respact of critical accounting estimates and
judgmoents, the deferrad tax assets are recognised on the basis of the Group's previgus history of
recordlng profits, and to the extent that it is probable that fulure taxable profits will be available
against which temperary differences can he utiised, Estimating the fuiure taxable profits invelves
signlflcant assumptions, especially in respect of fares, inad factar, fual price, maintenance costs
and gurrency movements, These assumptions have besn bullt based on past performance and
ad|usted fer non-recurring circumstances and a reasonable growth rate,

The Ministry of Finance granted approval to the Company under Section 127 of Income Tax Act,
1867 for income tax exemption in the form of an Investment Allowance (IA") of 60% on qualifying

. expenditure incurred within a peried of B years commenaing 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2014, to he sel

off against 70% of the statutary incoms for sach year of assessment. Any unutilisad allowange can
be carried forward 1o subsequent years untll fully utilised. The amount of income axampted from
tax is credited to a tax-exempt account frerm which tax-exempt dividends can be declared.
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{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

U <. .11 - S Compary
1122013 1122012 112002 311220153 31422012 11,2012
RAMOO0 BM'cO0 RM'000 RiO00 RM'O0D RK'00O0
irestated)  {restated) {restated)  (restated)
MonecUrrent;
Trade raceivabies 28,141 28,141 - 28,141 2B, 141 -
Lass: Alowancs for
impairmant {3,857 - (3,897
24,444 28,141 24444 28,141 -
Frepaymenis B35,538 456 487 248724 85,638 456,487 248,724
Deposits far
rmalntenance of aircraft 70,585 54,014 50,352 70,5895 84,074 50,352
Cither deposits 549,005 g4, 773 76,975 55,5048 B4, 773 TB.G975
847,573 613,415 a75,051 B47 573 613,414 376,051
Current:
Trade receivables 129,341 97,774 123,269 115,328 84,580 107,530
Lees: Allwance for
imeairment (3,318} (1,458) {1,458) {3,516} {1,458] (1,458}
126,025 o516 121,811 112,010 83,232 106 472
Olher receivablas 197 346 160,057 143,746 174,868 135,741 130,623
Less: Allowance for
Impairmment {14817} {1.608) {1,605 {12,435 (1,608} {1 508
162 425 158,449 142,138 162,433 138,133 129,015
Prepaymsants 276,828 278,043 230 257 276,487 278,04 239,126
Dlaposits — cash collateral
for dervatives 122,142 228 275 238,450 122,142 256,278 238,489
rher depasits 24,282 12,733 7,567 24164 12,855 7,820
749,272 GO 236 738,340 720622

731,808 771,820

Credit terms of trade receivables rangs from 30 to 60 days (31.12.2012: 30 to 60 days: 1.1.2012

30 to 60 days},

&b
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{Incorpotated in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES AMD FREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
{I) Financial assats that are neither past dus nor Impalred

Receivaliles that are neither past due nor impaired of RM223 802000 and
FM183,791,000 (2012: RM248,097,000 and Bh214697,000) for the Group and
Company respactively. Those are substantially companies with good coliection track
records with the Group and Company.

{ii} Financial assets that are past due but not impajred

Receivabtes that are past due but not impaired amounted to AWM166,082,000 (2012:
RM29,582,000) for the Group and Company. These are related to a number of
independent customers which have no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of
thess receivables that are past due bat not impaired is as follows:

Grouwg and Company

2013 2012

BMO00 R D00

1 to 30 days 70,621 20,736
891 to 120 days 5,728 8066
121 to 180 days 08,083 28,344
181 to 385 days 3,466 6,768
Ower 365 days 3,748 7478

141,848 71,441

Hecalvables that are past due but net impaired included in noncurrent asset at the
balance sheet dafe relalss to an amount due from a customer of RM24,444.000 (2012
RM2E,141,000) for which arbitratlon proceedings is currently ongoing. However, the
Directors of the Company have assessed the recoverability of the amount and is of the
view that the halance of AM24,444 000 is recoverable.

i} Financial assets that are past dus and/or impaired

The carrying amount of receivables indhvidually determined to be impaired are as follows:

R ¢+ Company

2013 2012 23 2012

RRPOOD  RM'000 BRM'00O  RAM'OOO

Crver 385 days 21,850 3,066 19,448 3,086
Lags: Allowance for mpalrrment (21,930 (3,088} {19,448} {3,066}

The individually impaired receivables are mainly related {o disputed balances with
customers or balances for which management is of the view that the amounts may not be
recoverable.

BE
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AIRASIA BERHAD
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NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

. RECEMNVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTIMNUED)

tMovamenis an the provision for impairment of receivables ars as follows:

Group  ___. Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

RM'0OO0 RKTOCO RM'000 RGO

At 1 January 3,065 3,086 3,088 3,065
Impairment {Note &) 18,584 - 16,382 -
At 31 Decambar 21,930 3066 14,448 3,086

|

The other classes within trads and other receivables do not cortaln impairad assets,

Deposits of the Group and Company at the balance sheal date are with a number of sxtarnal
parttes for which there is no expactation of default.

The maximum exposurs to cradit rigk at the reporting date is the carrying value of sach class of
receivables mentionad above. The Group and Company do not hold any collateral as securlty.

The currency profile of receivables and depesits (excluding prepayments) is as follows:

Group . Company

2013 2012 2013 212

BMO00 RM'O0O0 RLYOO0 RKOO0

Ringgit Malaysia 151,375 50,704 151,323 50,701
L3 Dallar 160,880 453 8852 126,803 420,451
{hhars 2494 658 148,045 204 BhQ 145,045
606,513 B850, 705 372734 B17.227

Prepayments include advances for purchases of fuel and prepaid engine maintenance to the
service previder,

The carying amounts of the Group’s and the Company'a trads and other recelvables approximale
thelr fair valuss.

DEPOSITS ON AIRCRAFT PURCHASE

Deposits on aircraft purchases represent amounts advanced tewards the final gost of aircraft to be
dellvarad to the Company.
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NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

AMOUNTS DUE FROMATO) ASSOCIATES

_ Group — Company
31.12.2013 31.12.2417 11202 31122013 3142.2012 1.1.2012
R 000 RMG0A RAFQ0O BM"O00 AR D00 RM'000
[restated) (restated) {restated)  {restated)
Aimeunis dus from
aszociates
- cuUrrant 738,735 30B.874 289 4502 BRO 572 331,407 280 4492
- nan-currant £59,190 440 578 314,514 476 564 4449 573 513,614
1,297 D25 806,452 BO3, 108 1,167,836 Fal,885 B3 108
Amaunt due t2 an
assoclate
- current {457 - {4,444} (457 {13,553 (4,444
-~ Nan-currant (60,858) (54,483) (B0,853) (54,488 -
(81,926} {54,4949) {4,444} (61,328 (68,0523 (4 dd44)
1,236,595 751,053 7a8,662 1,108,810 712,933 758,662

Amounts due from associates includs an amount of AM4B5,206,000 {(31.12.2012; RM485,855,000,
1.12.2012; RKM565,865,000) relating to advances to PT Indonesla AirAsia (IAA™ for purchase of
alrcrafl in 2011 for the financing of aireraft purchase and are repayable over a term of up to 3 yoars
at interest rales between 5.16% to 6.65% per annum. From this amount of RM4RSE,206 000,
RM413,676,000 (31.12.2012: RM448.578.000, 1.1.2012: AMS13,614,000) is repayable after 12
menths. The Company holds the aireraft as collateral. Othar amounts due from associates were
charged interast at 6% per annum with effect from 1 January 2010,

Advance to associate amounting to RME4.9 million (31.12.2012; Nil, 1.12.2012: Nil) is exclusively
to fund the operations of Zest Airways Ine, which will be repayabla from the drawdown date without
heed of demand. The advanca |s subject to pro-rated interest of 6% pear annum, compaounded
menthly on the principal, payabls on the final and full payment of the principal.
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NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

AMOUNTS DUE FROMATO) ASSQCIATES (CONTINUED}

{i} Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Amounis due from associates that are naither past due nor impaired of the Group and

Company

amounted 1o

RMS7Z2,185,000

and

HMMB42 489,000

(31.12.2012:

RK719,369,000 and RMBD3,902,000, 1.1.2012; RMA95,336.000 and RWMB95,336,000)

respechivaly.

The Group and Company have not made any impairment as management 1s af the view
that these amounts are recoverahle,

{ii} Financial assets thaf are past dus but not impaired

Amounts due from aszociates of the Group and Company that are past dus but nnt
impaired amounted to RM325,736,000 and BM325,447 000 respectively (31.12.2012;
RKE7 083,000, 1.1.201 2. RM107,770,000). The ageing analysis of these amounts s as

follows:

. Group . Company

A.A22013 220412 1.1.2012 31122013 21122012 1.1.2012

BMOCO RLTFOGO RK'0O0 R A" Q0 BROG0 RGOS

Up t2 3 months 141,507 87033 108,778 141,837 27,083 106,776
Cver 3 months 183,829 - g 183 /10 594
325,735 87,083 07,770 BY.0e3 107,770

325, 447

= . |

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 13 the carrying value of the amounts due
from associates mentioned above. The Group and Company do not hold any collateral as security,

The currency profile of the amounts due from/{to) associates is as follows:

) . ] Graupn L Company
MA220M3 32202 11.2012 51122013 31122012 11.2M2
FA'000 RK'000 RM'GO0 R 000 RK'000 RI"000
o (restated)  [restated) (restated)  {restated)
Amounts duoa fram
associgies
- US Dollar 1,287,925 B04, 774 8p3108 1,187,536 778,307 203,108
- Philippines Peso - 1.678 - - 1,678 -
1,267,225 BOS 452 H03 108 1,167.928 TRO,985 803,108
Amount dus to an
assgiate
- Singapots Collar . - {4,444 - - (4,444}
- LIS Dallar (81,328) {94,400 (61,328) {68.052) -
(61,5328} {54,489) {4 444} {61,226) (B8 052) (44444
1,236,508 754,083 79R.662  1108,610 712,933 TEE BE2
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NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMEER 2013 (CONTINUELD)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Mon-currant

Intetest rate swaps
— gash flow hedges
Interaest rate swaps
— held for trading
Interest rate caps
— held for trading
Forward foreign axchange
contracts — cash fiow hedges
Forward foreign exchange
contracts — held for trading

Tolai

Current

Intarest rate swaps
~ hald for trading
Forward forsign sxchanps
contracts - hald for trading
Commuodity derlvatives
— eash flow hedges

Total

Group and Company

2013 2012

Assets  Liabllities Assets  Liabilities

AM'000 RMO00 RM'D00 RIM'DOC
17,266 (195,490) - (38B,984)
. 156,278 - {95,463)

4,570 2,384 -
182,307 34,125 139,782)
31,522 1,184 {5,979)
235865  (251,788) 37,673 (510,208)
{29,309) (29,950)
1,282 (236) (5,468}

1,891 -

3,173 {29,545) . (35,419}

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a8 non-current asset or liahility if the
remalning maturity of the hedge item is more than 12 menths and, as a currant asset or kahility, If
the maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 maonths. Derivatives held for trading are these

which da not qualify for hedge accounting.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

_ 2013 212

Motional Falr Natlonal Falr

amount value amaoyni valug

BRYOG0 RIA'Q0O0 RM OG0 BLOOD

Interest rate caps 357 560 4,570 371,748 2,364
Interest rate swaps 3,467,775 (263,811) 4,090,465 {494 397)
ross currency inlorast rate swaps 151,860 1,225 168,540 {14,238)
Forward foreign exchangs contracts 3,224,321 213,650 3,664 530 (1,683
Commodity detivatives 77.g2a 1,691 - -

a,

{i}

in barrels

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at
31 December 2013 were RM3.376 billion {2012 RM3.823 hillion),

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has hedgad approximately 54% (2012; 58%) of ils
LsD liabilities pertaining to its aircraft, engine and simulator loans into Malaysian Ringglt
{"RM7} by using long dated forslgn exchange farward contracts to manage its forsign
currency risk. The latest woighted average of USD:RM forward exchange rate is 3.2230
{2012: 3.2245}. Gaing and lossas recognised in the hedging reserve in equity on hedglng
instruments as of 31 December 2013 will be continuously relessed to the income
statemnent within forgign exchange gains/{losses) cn borrowings untll the full repayment of
the term loans {refor Mote 28 to the financial staternants).

Intarast rate hadging

Tha natlonal principal amounts of the cutstanding interest rate contracts at 31 Degember
2018 were HM3 825 Billion (2012: RM4.452 hillion).

The Group has enfered into intarest rate contracts to hedge against fluctuations in the
USD LIBOR on its existing floating rate aircraft financing for aircraft delivered from 2005 to
=013, As at 31 December 2013, the Groug has hedged RME85.5 milllon (2012; RMS35.0
million} of iis existing alrcraft [oans at rates from 1.80% to 5.20% per annum (2012: 1,80%
to 5.20% per annum} via interest rate swaps, intarest rate caps and cross-currency swaps.
As at 31 December 2013, the Group has hedged RM2.199 billion (2012: RM2.124 billion)
of the term lpans and RM734.0 million {2012 RM735.8 million) of the finance lease
liabifities {Note 29). Gains and losses recognised in the hedging resetve in equity on
hedging instruments as of 31 December 2013 will be continuously released to the Income
statermnant within flnance cost until the full repayment of the term loans (rafer Note 29 to
the finanelal statements),
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AIRASIA BERHAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (COMTINUED)
iy Fusel contracts

The outstanding number of barrels of Slhgapore Jet Kerosene derivative contracts at 39
December 2013 was 77,328 barrels (2012: Nil}.

Ag at 31 Degember 2013, the Group has eniered into Singapore Jet Kerosene fixed swap
which reprasents Up to 79 (2012 Nil) of the Group's total expecied fuel volume for the first
half of 2014, This Is to hedge against the fuel price risk that the Group is exposed to.
Gaing and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in equlty on fuel confracts as of 31
Pecember 2013 are recognised in the income staterment In the perdod or perinds during
whigh the hedged ferecast transactions affects the incoma statement,

NYENTORIES
JEroup Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RRIO00 R 000 RA'O00 Al'000
Consumables 27 oo 15,960 27,022 15,880
In-flight marchand|se and others 1,688 4,775 1,598 8,775
29 520 23,725 29,520 23,725

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED FARTIES

The amounts due from subgidiarles are unsecured, interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment. These balances are neither past dus nor Impalred.

The amount due from related parties is unsecured, intersst free and has no fixed term of
repayrnant,

The currency profile of amounts dus from subsidiaries and ralated partles |s as follows:

Group . Company

213 2012 2013 2012

R UO0 RM'00G R D00 RMGOO

Ringgit Malaysia 2184 1,282 15,462 26,658
US Dollar &.9449 - 81,771 144 3586
6,113 1,282 197,233 176,012
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incarporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO) JOINT VENTURES

Group . . Company

2013 2012 2013 2014

RAO00 RM'O00 AKO0G BAO00

Amounts due from jaint ventures 33,703 10,785 11,431 3,086
Armaunt dua to a joint vanture - (151} -
33703 10,765 11,280 3,088

Amounts due fromd{to) joint ventures are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The currancy profile of the amaunts due from/fto) jpint ventures is as follows:

Group Gompany
2013 22 213 2012
AR OO0 RhQ00 AM'000 B000

Amounts dug from joint ventures:
= Ringgit Malaysia 1,604 3,066 1,804 2,068
- U5 Daollar o827 - 9,827 -
- SBingapore Dollar 22 272 7,585 - -
33,703 10,765 11,43 2,088

Armcunis dup 1o a Joint venture:

- US Dollar - - (151) -
{151] -

33,703 10,765 11.280 3,086
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Far the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash eguivalents include the following;

Group _ Company

2M3 2012 2013 2012

RIA'QOD Rk'000 REFOG0 RM'0DG

Cash and bank balancas 1,181,123 1,562,043 1,120,981 1,488,408

Deposits with ligensed banks 189312 571.425 185,545 568,328
Shart term deposits with fund

manapernant companles - 108,258 - 108,263

Depoeits, cash and bank balances 1,380,435 2,232,731 1,308 526 2,168,999

Less: Deposifs pledged a3 securities (14.418) (13,488) (14,416} {13,488)

Lass: Raztrictsd cash {171,523} - {171,529} -

1,184,480 2,214,243 1,120,581 2,153,511

The currancy profile of daposits, cash and bank balances is as follows:

Group Company

2013 2gie 2013 2012

Brran0 RRIC00 BRO00 RIGO0

Ringgit Malaysia 145,227 859,551 141,425 088,161
US Dollar 188,148 203,348 118,498 141 5560
Singapore Dollar 26,535 133,847 28,4583 133,312
Australian Doflar 25,857 118,736 25,887 118,735
Chinese Renminbi 210,944 415,585 210,244 416,609
Hong Kong Dollar 12,217 32,525 12,216 32524
India Rupee 21,422 116,547 21422 116,547
Thai Baht 3911 5,788 3,807 5,783
Indonaslan Bupiah 0.807 144 578 8 B07 144 7B
Brunei Dollar 5,020 10,557 3,020 10,657
Eura 10,152 2,745 10,182 2748
FPhlllppine Feso 2,270 8,439 2270 £,43%
Wiethamese Dong 5,852 28,107 8 0E2 28107
Eritish Pound 5,639 9,766 563z B, 763
Others 6,484 9,850 G454 9,830

1,360,435 2,232,731 1,306,226 2,166 898

The deposits with licensed banks of the Group and Company amounting to RM14,416,000 (2012,
FAK13,488,000) are pladged as securitiss for banking facliities granted to the Group and Cornpany
{Note 28).

Rasiricted cash was in relation to & cash deposit pledged for the Group’s and Company's revolving
cradit as at 31 Becember 2013 (Nofe 29).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (GONTINUED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The welghted average eifective annual interest rates of deposits at the balance sheet daiss are as

follows.
e Group . Company
2015 2012 2013 2012
%% T % %
Deposits with
licensed banks 523 3.00 325 3.00
Short term daposlts
vwith fund
management companies - 2.80 2,80
TRADE AMD OTHER PAYABLES
o Group — Campany
21122013 31122018 112013 31129013 3422012 1.1.2012
AR 030 RM'DOO RM'0G0 Rk'000 RIQ00 RlA'G00
Non-current:
Ajreraft maintenanas
accruals 918,864 828,217 400,528 218 BG4 B2E 917 408, 628
Currernt:
Trade payables 71,890 85,134 41,268 37 841 42 552 57,428
Accrual for fusl 224 230 165,973 162 677 224,239 165,973 162,577
CQther payables and
acsrals 448 860 435,041 483, 7ED 392 220 420,382 473,420
744 593 6466,148 727,504 £838,007 B93,435

@e0,308

e

Other payables and accruals include accruals for operational expsnses pavable to alrport

authorities and passenger service charge.

The currency profile of trads and other pavables is ag follows:

fSroup Company

A22013 2422012 112018 222013 31122012 1.1.2012

Ri'00G RrA'000 RE'DOQ AK' OO0 RM'G00 RMQ00

A 451 BRO 107,439 525,839 412 872 107,459 525939
UsD 1,106,327 1,131,763 583,842 1,081,068 1,103,522 549,773
Others 105, 155 55.8R3 27,351 B5 432  BR.ABS 27,451
1,668,852 128506858 1137232 1,878,173 1.286924 1,103,082
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{incorporated In Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 .DECEMBEH 2013 (CONTINUED}

AMOUNTS DUE TO A SUBSIDIARY AMD A RELATED PARTY

The amounts due o a subsidiary and a related party are denominated In Rinpglt Malaysia,
unsecurad, intorest fres and are repayable on demand,

BORROWINGS

Current:

sSecured

Term loans

Finance leaze liakilities

Commodity Murabahah
Finance

Sk

FRevalving cradit

Mon-current:

Secured

Term loans

Finance lsasa llahilities

Comrmodity hMurabathab
Finance

Total borrowings

Weighled average rate of finance

2013

Thi berrowings are repayable as follows:

Mot later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and nol later than 5 years

Later than & yoars

Fi=

-1
o

4.21
5.68

o3

PR1Z
Y

4.42
5.67

4.85
4.85

442
0.87

4.85

_...Group and Company

2013 2012
RRA'000 RM'000
853,314 837 880
58,407 58,183
35,940 10,101
420,000

183,778 -
1,118,438 1,126,154
7,803,660 8,448,740
744,420 757,080
403,436 78,385
9,051,416 7,283,185
10,170,852 4,408,339

Group and Comparny

2015 2012
HLCO0 RM'000
1,118,438 1,126,154
4,656,400 3,180,247
4,286,018 4,102,838
10,170,852 8,400,339
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{Ineorporaied in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The currency prefile of borrowings is as follows:

Growp and Company

2013 2012

FERI'CO0 RK'000

Ringgit Malaysia 1,002,151 509,488
S Dollar 8,821,446 7.562,154
Euro 136,757 122,636
Singapore Dollar 210,408 215,163
10,170,852 8,40&,334

Total borrowings as at 31 December 20713 cansist of the fellowing banking facilitias:

GSroup and Company

2013 2012

R 000 RM'000

Fixed rate borrowings 6,144 416 5,775 E82
Flzating rate borrowings 4,026,438 2,823 747
8,409 339

10,170,852
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BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

NCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts and falr values of the non-current fixed rate borrowings are as follows:

Group and Company

2013 — 2012

Carrylng Fair Carrying Fair

_amaount value amount valug

BM'O00 BA'CO0 RK'000 AM'O00

Term |oans 5,041,987 4,802,838 4,821 488 4,524 575

Finance lease liabllities 113,284 111,602 123,003 115,431
Commodity Murabahah

Finance 403,436 397,280 79,385 75,002

B &ahRE 707 5,411,620 B123 877 4,714,708

The fair values of the borrowings classifisd as current llabilltlss, squal their carrying amounts, as

the impact of discounting is not significant.

The fair values of the non-current fixed rate borrowlngs are based an cash flows discounted using
borrowing rates that are reflective of the Group and Company's credit risk at the balancs sheet
date, at 5.28% to 5.84% (20712 5.07% to 5.67%) per annum. The fair values of nom-current

borrowings are within izveal 3 of the falr valus hierarchy.

Tha above term loans, finance leasa liablities (Tjarah) and Commodity Murabahah Fimance are for
the purchase of aircralt, spare engines and working capital purposes.

The rapaymant erms of term loans and finance lease liabilities are on a quarterly or semi-annually

basgis, These arg securad by the following:

{a) Assignment of rlghts under contract with Airbus over gach alrcraft;
{h) Assignment of insurance of each aircraft; and
(c) Aszignment of airframe and snglne warrantles of each airoraft,

The Commodily Murabahah Finance is secured by & sacond priority charge ever the aircraft.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED]

SHARE CAPITAL
..Group and Company
2013 2m2
RRTO00 RiA'000
Authorised:
Ordihary shares of RM3.10 each:
At beqinning and end of the financial year 500,000 500,000
lssued and fully paid up:
Ordinary shares of RMO. 10 sach;
At beginning of the financlal year 277,821 277 808
lasued during the flnanclal vear 115 182
At and of the financial year 278,106 277,891

Buring the financial year, the Company Increased Its issued and paid-up ordinary share capital
from RM277 990,658 to BM278,106,258 by way of issuance of 1,158,000 ordinary shares of
AMO.10 each pursuant to the exersise of the Employee Share Option Scheme {"ESOS™) at an
axercise price of AM1.08 per share. The premium arising from the exerciss of ESOS of
AR1.132,880, has bean credlited 1o the Share Premium account.

The new ordinary shares |ssued during the financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the
existing ordinary shares of the Company. There were no other changss in the lssued and pald-up
caplial of the Company during the financial year.

During the previous financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up ordinary share
capital from RM277 808,558 to RM277 990,658 by way of issuance of 1,821,000 ordinary shares
of BM0.10 each pursuant to the exarcise of the E30S at an exercise price of RM1.08 per share.
The premium arising from the exercise of ESOS of BM1,734,580 had been creditad to the Shars
Fremium account.

Tha new ordinary shares Issued during the previous financial year ranked pari passu in all
respacts with the existing ordinary shares of the Company. Thera wers no other changes in the
issued and paic-up capital of the Company during previous the financial year.

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME ("ES0OZ")

The Company implemented an ESOS on 1 Seplember 2004 [the Schems”). The ESDS i3
governed by the by-laws which were approved by the shareholders on 7 June 2004 and was
effective for a pericd of 5 years from the date of approval. On 28 May 2003, the Company
gxtended the duration of its ESOS which explred ot § June 2009 by ancther 5 years to § June
2014, Thiz was in accordancs with the terms of the ESOS By-Laws. The ESOS extension was not
sublect o any regulatery or shareholders’ approval.
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AIRASIA BERHAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (DDNT]N.UED‘}

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED]

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESO0S” (CONTINUED)

The main features of the ES0S are as follows:

(&)

{c)

(e}

(f)

The maximum number of ordinary shares, which may bo allotted pursuant to the exercise
of options undar the Schems, shall not exceed len per cent (10.0%) of the issued and
pald-up shara capital of the Company at any point in tirme durng the dueation of the
Scheme.

The Opticn Committee may from time to time decide the conditions of eligibility to be
fulfilled by an Eligible Person in crder to participate in the Scheme.

The asggregate number of shares to be offersd to any Eligible Peracn who has fulfilled the
aligihility criteria for the time being by way of options In accordancs with the Scheme shall
ke at the discretion of the Option Committes. Tha Option Committee may consider
circumstances such & the Ellgible Person's scope of responsibllitles, performancs in the
Group, rank or job grade, the number of years of service that the Ellgible Person has
rondarad 1o the Group, the Groups retantlon policy and whether the Eligible Ferson is
serving under an employment contract for a fixed duration or otherwisa, The Optlon
Coammlttea's decision shall ba final and blhding.

The maxlmum number of shares aliocated to Executive Directors, Non-Executive Dlrectors
and senior management by way of options shall in aggregate not excead fifty per cent
(50.0%:) of the total number of shares {or such other percentage as may he permitted by
the relevant regulatery authorities from time to time) availakle undar the Schame.

The subscription price, in respect of options granted prior 1o the date of listing in Bursa
Malaysia, shall be RM1.08 per shara.

The options granted are exercisable one year beglhning from the date of grant,

The shares to be allolled and issued upon any valld exercise of aptions will, upon such aliotrment
and issuance, rank par| passu in all respects with the existing and issued shares excoept that such
shares so Issued will not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments andior any other
distributions which may be declared, made or paid to shareholdars prior to the date of allotment of
such shares. The options shall not carry any right to vote at a genetal mesting of the Compary.

Tha Company granted 33,240,000 optlons at an sxerclee price of BM1,08 per share undsr the
ESOS scheme on 1 September 2004, which expired on & June 2008, During the financlal year
ended 31 December 2008, the validity of this ES(OS schema was extanded to 6 June 2014,

At 31 Decambar 2013, optichs to subscribe for 2,583 800 (2012 3,738,600) ordinary shares of
RMO.10 sach at the exerclse price of BM1.08 per share remain unexercised, These options
granted do nat canfar any rght to partisipate v any share issue of any other company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SGHEME (ESOS") (CONTINUED)

et out below are details of options over the ordinary shares of the Company granted under ths
ESOS:

Expiry Exarcizse At At

Grant date date prics  1.1.2013  Granted Exergisgd Lapsed 31122013

Rid/share 000 000 ‘000 700 000

1 September & June 1.08 3,738 - {1,168} - 2,583
2004 2014 =n

Expiry Exercise At At

{Grant date date price  1.1.2012  Granted Exergsed Lapsad 31122012

Rhdlshare ‘000 oG o0 000 00

1 Septombar G Juna 1.08 R.580 - {1,821} - 3,739

2004 2014 m

2013 2012

OO0 LHAl]

Mumber of share options vested at balance sheat date 2,583 3,738

Details relating to options exercised during the financial voar are as follows:

Quoted price

of shares Mumber

at share Exercize of shares

Exarcize date . issue date price issued
Fhiahare - AMizhare 000

January 2013 to Mareh 2013 242 - 287 .08 600
April 2013 to June 2013 277 -3.54 . 1.08 a4
July 2013 to September 2013 244 —3.25 1.08 456

October 2013 1o Dacember 2013 2. i8-2497 1.08 BB

1,156

—fm——————

81



40

31

32

Company Mo,
284660 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

-SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME ("ESOS"} (CONTINUED)

Dralails relating to options exercised during the financial year are as foliows {rontinuad):

2013 2012

BLIO0G RO00

Ordinary share capital at par 115 182
Share premium 1,133 1,785
Frocoads racaived on axerslse of shara aptlons 1,248 1.4967
Fair valua at axercise date of shares lssUsd 3,286 6413

RETAINED EARNINGS

As at 31 Decomber 2013, the Company doss not have any Section 108 tax credits and has
thersforg automatically maved to the singfe-tier tax system, which came into effect from the year of
assessment 2008, under which cempanles are not reguired to have tax credita under Section 108
of the Income Tax Act, 1967 for dividend payment purposes. Dividends paid under this system are

tex exampt In the hands of shareholders,

DIVIDENDS

Pividends deglared or proposad by the Company are-as follows,

23 L 2012
Gross Armount Gross Amaunt
dividend  of dividend dividend  of dividend
per share net of tax por share  _net of tax
Sen RM'00G Sen R 000
First and final dividend paid in respect
of the financial year ended 31 Decembor
2012 '
Single-tlered Interim ‘special’ dividend of
18 sen per share 18.00 500,383
Single-tisred dividend of 6 san par shara
(2012: 5.00 sen per share) §.00 166,831 5.00 138,957
138,957

24.00 GE7.214 5.00
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AIRASIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

COMMITMENTS AND QPERATING LEASES

(&) Gapital commlitments not pravided for in the financial statemenis are as follows:

Froperty, plant and equipment;
- Approved and contracted for
- Approved but not contracted for

Sroup and Company

2013 2012
R 000 HRA'DOG

55515081 51,144,087
12,888,282 13,756,500

68,503,343 64,900,587

The capital commitments for the Group and Company ara In respect of airgraft purchase.

{b) Non-cancellable operating leases

The future minimum lease payments and sublease roceipts under hon-cancsllable

oparating lsasaes ars as follows:

Mot tater than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not

later than 5 years
Later than b yaars

Group and Company

. 2013 ] 2012
Future Future Futurs Future
minimum minimum AR ML m Finimum
lease subleazs isase suUblcase
payments roaceipts payments racapts
RKOO0 AKTO00 RE'GO0 B000
202,338 780,328 188,800 51 550
720,787 2,558 635 795,200 2.256,713
738,826 2750514 1,036,015 2,670,381
1,727,051 56,4648 477 230,815 5,488 824

Sublease raceipls include lease receipts from both owned and |sased aircraft receivable
from Thal AirAsia Go. Lid, PT Indonesia AirAsia, AirAgia Ine and Zest Alrways Inc..

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2013 the Group ahd Company had contingent liahilitiss amounting fo AM20.7
million (2012: AWM Nil). Of the total, RM10.0 milion relates to a flne Imposed by the Malaysian
Compelition Commission, against which the Company Intends to appeal to the Compatillon Appeal
Tribunal, and RM10L7 million relates to a single customer claim against the Company which Is
subject to arbitratlon proceedings, Having considered legal advice the Directors are of the opinian

that the possibility of outflow is not probable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SEGMENTAL INFORKATION

Seqgmental information is as shown in the Income statements, halanee shesis and relevant notes
as the Group's sole business segment is the pravision of air transportation serviess. Managemers:
has determined the operating segment based on raporls that are reviewed and usad to maks
strateqic decisions by the Chief Execiutive Officer who is identified as the chief aperating dacislon
maker. '

' The Group’s operations &re conducted predominantly in Malaysia.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY THANEAGTLDNS

In addilion o the related party dlsclosures mentioned elsewhers in tha financlal statemants, set out
holow ars othar significant related party disclosures.

Tha refated! parties of the Company and their ralationships at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Related compahies Hedatlonship
AirA=ia Go Holiday Sdn Bhd Subsidiary
AirAsia (Mauritivs) Limited Subsidiary
AirAsia investment Limited Subsidiary
Koolred Sdn Bhd Subsidiary
AirAsia Global Shared Services Sdn Bhd Subsidiary
AirAsia Philippines Inc Associate
FT Indonesia AirAsia Associaie of a subsidiary
AirAsia Inc Associate of a subaldiary
AirAsia Pte Limited Aszociale of a subsidiary
Thai AirAsia Co. Ltd Associzte of a subsidiary
Airdsie Japan Co. Lid Assotciate of a subsidiary
AlrAsia {Indla) Private Limited Agsonlate of a subsidiary
Zest Alrways Inc Subsidlary of an associate
Aslawlde Airways [nc Subsldiary of an associate
AAE Travel Pta Lid Joint venture of a subsldiary
Asian Aviation Centre of Excellence Sdn Bhd Joint venturs
Think Big Digital Sdn Bhd Joint venture
AlrAgia X Barhad _ Company with common diractors and
' shareholders

AirAsla Asean Inc. Gommeh directors

Tune Money Sdn Bhd Commen dirsctors

All relatad party transactions weare sarlied out on agresd tarms and corditions,

Key management parsonnel are categorised as head or senior management officers of key operating
ivisions within the Group and Corpany. The key managsmeant compansation is disclosed in Note
E6(a) bolow, '
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFIGANT RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Helated party fransactions also include transactions with entitfes that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced direstly or indirectly by any key management personnel or

their close family mambers, whers applicable.

{a)

[neoma:

Aircralt oporating leass incoma
for owned and leased aitcraft
- Thai AlrAsla Co. Lid
- PT Intonesia Alrdsla
- AjrAsla Inc
- AirAsia Japan Ca. Ltd
- Zest Airways Inc

Gain on disposal of aircraft to
Thai AirAgia Co. Lid

Services and fees chargad to
AirAsia X Berhad

Foas charged to associates
providing commercial alr
transpor services

Recharqges.

Racharges of axpenses to
- Thal AirAsia Co. Ltd
- PT Indonesia AirAsia
- AlrAsia Inc
- AirAgia Japan Go. Lid

Recharges of expsnsas by
- Thai Alrasla Go. Ltd

Graup ompany
2013 2012 2013 2012
RErTOO0 BRTOOG RiAD00 HI000
333,818 310,553 333,818 310,553
257 045 184,323 257 045 184 323
30,435 26,012 20,435 26012
41,973 13,985 41,973 13,985
2,770 - 2770 -
23,367 9,574 -
15,378 14,148 15,376 14,149
54,751 - 54,751 -
56,241 70,843 88,241 70,943
S06,195 107,005 306,186 107,005
10,267 15,337 10,267 15,337
- 12,808 - 12,806
{11,454 (11,5023 (11,484 {11,502}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

a8 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRHANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

{d)

{2)

Other chargas:

Malntehance reserve fund
charged to

- PT Indonesgia Airasia

- Thai Airdsia Co. Lid

- Ajrdsia inc

- AirAsia Japan Co. Lid

- Zost Alrways Inc

Interest charges to

- PT Indonasla AlrAsia
- AirAsia Ino

Begiohal expensas recehvable:

- AirAsia Asean Inc.

Koy managament compeansalion:

- baslc salahes, bonus and
allowanses
- defined contribution plan

e Eroup Company,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Ri'000 R 000 BRODD Bhy000
142,640 100,877 142,640 100,577
145,631 117,357 145,531 117,387
13,638 6,543 13,638 6,543
13,185 8,068 13,185 5,068
580 - 580 -
12,758 49417 12,758 49417
5,387 1,680 b,357 1,850
2,417 24,498 2,417 24,498
18,048 22 939 17,007 22.839
2,052 2,380 1,927 2,380
23,098 2h 329 18,834 25,3249

Included in the key management compensation are Executive Directors’ remuneration as
disclosed in Mote 5 o the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICGANT RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS [CONTINUDED)

Group ' Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AKTOO0 " RMOO0 HR'D00 RAT000
(rastated) (restated)
{f} Receivables:
- AirAsia (Mauritius) Limited - - -B8,641 77,321
~ Ajrdgia Investrment Liefted - - 74034 72,020 -
- Koolrad Sda Bhd - . - 14,585 14,811
- AirAsia Global Shared
Servicas Sdn Bhd - - 13,208 .
- Alrdsla Go Holiday Sdn Bhd - - 5,663
- Thai AirAsia Ca. Utd B2,200 25,457 13,851 .
- Agian Aviation Cantre
of Excellanca Sdn Bhd 0,481 3,068 9,481 3,066
- PT Indonesia Airdsig Ba0,245 706,835 244,550 706 B35
- AirAsia Philippines Inc - 1,678 - 1,678
- AirAgia Inc 206,280 40,525 285523 40,528
- AirAsia Japan Co. Lid “ 32,147 - 32147
- AlrAsla (fndia) Private Limited - asd - E&4 -
- Zest Alrways Inc 18,027 - 18,208
- A&FE Travael P Lid 02,274 7,689 -
- Think Big Digltal Sdn Bhd 1,970 - 1,870
- Tunz Money Sdn Bhd 1,401 - 1,401 -
il Payables
- &irAsla Go Holiday Sdri Bho - - 10,185 -
- Thai Airdsia Co, Lid 50,858 o4 490 G0La00 508,052
- AAE Travol Pla Lid - - 151 -
= Alrdsia X Barhad 15,148 12,635 15,1445 - 12,639

=

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Group’s activities exposs it to market risk (including fuel price risk, interost rate risk and
foreign currency risk}, credit risk and diquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme gesks to minimise adverse affect from the unpredictability of financlal markets on the
Group's financial perfarmance. The Group uses financial instruments such as fuel swaps, Interst
rate swaps and caps, and foreign currency forwards to manags thesea finangial risks.

The Beard of Directars is responsible for setting the objectives and undestying principles of
financlal rsk management for the Group and the Company. The managemsent tsam than
establishes detailed policies such as risk identisication and measurement, exposurs limits and risk
managemsant stratagles. Bisk management policias and procedures are reviewsd regularly 1o
reflect changss In the market condition and the Group’s activities.

The Group also sasks to ensure that the financial résources that are availabla for the development

of the Group's businesses are constantly monitored and managed vis-a-vis its ongoing exposure
to fuel price, intersst rate, foreign currency, credit, liguidity and cash flow tisks.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {CONTINUDED)

The palicles in raspact of the major areas of treasury activities are as follows.

{a)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or fiture cash flows of a financial nstrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as forslgn exchange rates, jat fusl
prices and interest rates. The objective of market risk management Is to manage and
control market risk exposure within aceeptable parameters while optimising the return on
risk.

i) Fuel price risk

The Group and Company are sxpossd to jot fusl price risk arlsing from the
fluctuations in the prices of jet fuel, and sesk to hedge thelr fuel requirernants
using fual swaps in order to address the rfek of rising fuel prices {Mote 22). As at
31 Decamber 2013 there wers no existing trades that would impact the post-tax
profit for the year and equity. As at 31 Decernber 2013, if US0 denominated barrel
had been USDS highet/lower with all other variables held constant, the impact an
the post-tax profit and equity for the yvear end are tabulated below:

2013 2012
+USD5 -Jshs tUSDS -USDE
HM'D00 RMCO RRYO00 RAPO00
Impact on post tax profits
Impact on ather
comprehensive Income 1,266 {1,268) - -

il Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk (s the elsk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrurnant will fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is that rigk that the fair value of a financkl nstrument will flustuate
due to changes in market interest rates.

In view of the substantlz] borrowlngs taken to finahce the acguisition of aircrafis,
the Group’s income and oparating cash flows are alsa Influenced by changes In
markst interest rates. Intarest rate exposure arises from the Group's floating rate
horrowings and is managed by entering into derfvative financial instruments.
Derivative financlal instrumenta are used, as far as possible and wheare appropriate,
to ganerate the desired fixed inlerest rate prefile. Surplus funds are placed with
reputabla financial institutions at tha most favourable interest rates.

The Group managss its cash flow interest rate risk by entering into & number of
immedlate Interast rate swap cottracts and cross currency swap contracts that
effectively converts its existing long-term floating rate dabt facililles Into fixed rate
dabts {Note 22). This hedging strategy ensures that the Group is paying a fixed
intorast exponze on its borrowinge and that the performance of the Group ie nnt
slgriflcantty Impacted by the flustuation in interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTIMNUED)

(2)

Market risk {continued)

(fE

Interast rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposurs 1o
interest rates for both derfvatives and non-derlvative instruments at the balapce
sheet date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial
year and held constant throughout the reporting peried in the case of instrumants
that hawvs floating rates.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 Decembar 2012, if interest rate on USD
genominated borrowings had been B0 hasiz points highser/lower with all other
variablas hald constant, the impact on the post-tax profit for the year and syuity
arlsitg from the cash fiow interast rate risk would be minimal, after considering the
hedoing of the floating raie loans {Mote 223,

At 31 December 2013, 1f interest rate on USD denominated borrowings had been
60 basis points higher/lowsr with all other variables held constant, the impast on
the positax profit for the flnancial year end equity, as a result of an
increase/decreass in the falr walue of the interest rate derlvative financial
instruments under cash flow hedges are tabulated below. The impact on post tax
profits arises only from derlvative held for trading, and the lmpact to other
comprehensive income arises from derivative designated as hedgling instruments:

2013 ) 2012

+80bps -60bpa +60bps -6ibps

ReA"O00 RAO00 RM'DDO E{NE O]

Irpact on post iax profits . 21,235 (21,168) 24 869 (20,810}
impact on other

comprehensive incoma FO.BT3 (85,805) 116,254 {122,157}

The remaining terms of the outstanding interest rate derivative contracts of the
Company at 31 December 2013, which are denominated in USD, are as follows:

2013 2012
RMQ00 RKQO0

Later than 1 vear bt less than 5 years:

Intarast rate swaps 584,553 15,172

Later thah 5 yegrs:

Interest rate caps 357,558 371,746
Interast rate swaps 2,883,222 4,075,293
Cross surrency interest rate swaps 151,888 158,240

3,877,213 4,820,751
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

fa) Markat risk {cantinued)

(i)

Foregign currency risk

Apart from the Ringgit Malaysia {"RM™), the Group transacts business in varlous
foreign currencies and iz therefore exposed to currency exchange risk. Those
BXposures are managed, to the extent possible, by natural hedges that arise when
paytments for forsign currency pavables are matched agalnst receivables
denominated in the same foreign currency of whenever possibla, by intragroup
arrangements and settlements,

For the USD denominated borrowings, 54% of these are hedged by long dated
forgign exchange forward confracts to manage the foreign currency risk (Nota 229,

As at 31 Dacembar 2013, if AM had weakened/strengthenad by E% against the
USD with all other varlables held constant, poattax profif for the financlal year
wolld have been RM242.3 millioh (2012: RiM191.1 milllon) towet/higher, mainly as
a result of forsign exchange lossesialns on tranzlation of USD denominated
receivables and borrowings {term loan and finance |lease). Similarly, the Impact on
other comprehenshve ncome would have besn BMA8.5 milien (2072 RMEC.O
milllon} higher/lower dus to the cash flow hadging In USD. The exposure to ather
foreign currency risk of the Group is not material and hence, sensitivity analysis is
not presented.

The Group's currancy exposurs is as follows:

RMB and
At 31 Pecember 2073 ysh ALD 50D HED Others

RK'000 RRO00  BAN'GOHD RN GO0 RAk1000

Flnanclal aasets

Hecelvablea 160,880 & 008 52823 8,823 223,833
Amounts due Trom associates 1,297,825 - - - -
Amounts due from jaint venturas 89827 - 22,272

Darivative finangial instruments 238,838 -

Ameunt due from a related parly 3,549

Deposita, cash and bank halances 188,148 25,887 26,535 923 161 71,677

1,898,587 34885 101,730 831884 295570

Flnanclal llatkilitiea

Trade and other payables 187 463 4. 287 29,710 39,338 40,538
Amount due to an associate 81,324 - - - -
Borrawings 8821446 - 210,498 - 136,757
Dervative sinancial instrumenta 281,313 - - - .

8,301,548 4 2R7 232,208 39,239 177,285

Het exposure [#,451,981) 30,429 [130478) 832655 118,574
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUEL)

{a]

Market rizk (continued)

i)

Forelgn currency risk [continued)

Tha Group’s currency exposure bs as follows: {continued)

At 31 December 2012

Financial aseets

Aecelvables

Amounts dus from associates
Amount due from a jeint venture
Derivative financial Instruments
Deposits, cash and bank halances

Flnanclal llablitles

Trade and other payvabies
Amount due to an associate
Borrowings

Darlvative financial instruments

MNet exposure

RME and

s AUD SG6G0 HED Oihers

R Q00 RRO0G RMOO0 RRQO0 RM"00

453,858 148,045

804,774 - - 1,678

“ 7,608 - -

a7.aFa - - - -

20:3,848 118,736 133,847 452 BEG 384 531

1,500,254 118,736 141,546 452 228 482 244

&0 B4 5 55,8632

5d 424 - - -

062154 - 218,183 122,635

LAG B2T - - -
8,885,126 215,183

178,388

(7,154,872) 118736 {73,817

452228 303,845

=¥
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED}

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Market risk {continuad}

{iii}

Foreign currency risk {continued)

The Camparny's currenty cxposUte s 25 Tollows;

At 31 Decermbar 2013

Financial assets

Raceivables

Amounts due from subsldiaies
Amourts dus from associates
Amounts due from |cint ventures
Amount due from refated parties
Derlvative financlal instruments

Dopasits, ¢ash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Trada and other payables
Amounts die to joint ventures
Amount dus to an associate
Bormowings

Dativative finangial instruments

Mat exposure

At 31 Decemlrer 2012

Financial assets

Recelvables

Amounts dus from subsidiaries
Amounts duz from assoclates
Crarvative financial instruments

Deposits, cash and bank halances

Financial lakilities

Trade and ather payables
Ameouwnt dus to an associale
Borrowingsa

Darivafive financial instruments

MNet exposula

RME and
usD AUD 860 __ HKB  Others
RE'O00  BMOGDD  RMO00 RMOO0  [ANOOD
126,503 9,008 52,929 8,833 223,883
177,822 . ] j .
1,167,936 - . - -
o827 - - - .
2,949 - - . -
238,838 . ; ] .
118,488 25687 26483 023180 71,873
1,843 673 34,806  7O406 931803 205558
162,205 4,267 1,201 29339 40,535
151 - - - .
&1,326 - - . -
8,821,448 - 210,408 - 138,757
251,313 - - - -
8,326,441 4267 211,780 59,330 177292
(7,482, 768) 30,4920 {132,383) 002654 118574
420,481 . . - 148,045
148,356 - - - -
779,307 . . - 1,678
47,673 - - . .
141550 118,786 133,812 452228 334,512
1528367 118,736 133,812 452228 482,235
474,705 - . - 55,853
68,052 - - . -
7,562,164 - 215163 - 122,598
545,627 - - . .
8,650,538 - 215,i83 - 178,399
(7,122,171 11,736 482298 303,835

[81,351)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FOLIGIES (CONTINUED)

k)

Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk of financial loss ta the Group if a customer or a counter party to a
financial instrument fails to mest its contractual obligations and arises principally from the
Groug's receivables from customers, cash and cash equivalents and financlal assets
{tlerlvative instrumarts).

The Group's exposura to credit risks or the risk of counterparties defaulling arises mainly
frem various deposits and bank balances, receivables and derivative financial instruments.
As the Group dees not hold collataral, the maximum sxposure to cradit risks is represented
by the tolal carying amount of theee financlal assets in the balance sheet.

Credit risks are controlled by the application of credit approvals, limits and menioring
prosedures. Credit risks are minimised by monitoring recetvables regularly. In addition,
credi risks are also controlled as majority of the Group's deposlts and bank balances and
derlvative financial instruments are plaged or transacted with major flnancial institutlons and
reputable parties. The Directors are of the view that tha poasibility of non-performance by
the majority of these financial institulions i remote on the basis of their financial strength
and suppoit of their respective governmants.

The Group generally hes no concendration of credit risk arising from trade receivables,
exoept as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statemants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {CONTINUED)
() Liguidity and cash flow risk

The Group's polley on liguidity risk managernent is io maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and to have available funding through adequate amaounts of committed cradit
facilties and credit lines for working capital requirements,

The table helow analyses the Group's payables, nan-derivative financial llabilities, gross-
sotlled and not-sellled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining petied at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed In the table below are the contractual undiscountad cash flows.

Lass than
_ wear 1—2 yoars 2-Svyears Owvarfvyears
BRDO0 AM'000 REGOC BrO00
Sroup
At 31 December 2013
Term loans 1,212,470 1,208,055 3,099,315 4,119,778
Finance lease liabiiities 111,684 112,289 387,112 472 644
Cormmodlty Murabahah
FiFamce 5a.B57 57,844 167,840 321,749
Revolving cradit 167,043 - - -

Trade and other payahles 744,958 - - -
Amount dus to an

associate 467 - - 60,859
Amount due to a related
party 15,145 - - -

2,310,684 1,378,188 4,534 3687 4,975,024

——

At 31 December 2012

Term loans 836,503 933,049 2816548 3,838,064
Finance leass liablities 103,748 104,279 G384 572,524
Commadity Murahahah

Finance 14,563 14,581 43,478 35,350
Sutkuk 430,185 - - -

Trade and gther payables 665,148 - - .
Arnaunt dues to an

associate - - - 54.40%
Amount due to a relatad

party 12,638 . . .

2,163,875 1,081,718 3TE412 4,500,442
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{c) Liquidity and cash flow rlak (continued)
Lass than
1 yaar 1-2 years 2-5 years  Over b years
RI'CO0 RRTO00 RIA000 RRA'000
Sompany

At 3 De_cem bar 2013

Term loans 1,212,470 1,208,055 3,806 315 4.119,772
Finance leasa llabilitias 111,684 112,280 367,112 472,644
Commodity Murabahah

Finance 68 857 57.844 167,840 321,748
Fevolving credit 167,043 - - -

Trade and other payables 860,300
Amount due to joint

ventures 151 _ - - -
Amnunt due to assogiates 457 - - 80,855
Amount dug to a related

Bary 15,145

2508128 1,378,188 4,534 367 4,975,024

Company
At 31 Decamber 2012

Term loans 836,603 533,043 2,816,548 3,838,054
Finance |ease lahilities 103,748 104,278 316,388 572,528
Cammodity Murabahah

Flnance 14,353 14,381 43478 39,3560
Sukuk 430,185 - - -

Trade and other payables 838,007
Amotnt due to an

associate 13,553 . - 84,480
Amount dug 1o a related
party 12,638 - -

2,149,088 1,051,719 3,176,412 4,000,442

=13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c) Liguldity and cash flow risk (continuad)

The table below analyses the Group's and Comparny's derivative financiat instruments for
which contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining pariod from the balance sheat
date to the confraciual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undlscounted cash flows,

Less than
1 year 1=2vears 2-Syears  QOver B years

000 A'D00 BRO00 RO
Group and Company
At 31 Decembar 2013
Mat-settled derlvatives
Trading 28,344 24,8438 3,178 1,551
Hedging 8,052 57,138 70,350 2614
Gross-settled derivatives
Trading — ouiflow 48,579 -
Trading — inflow (45,751} -
Hadging — outflow . -
Hadging — inflow
At 31 Decambar 2012
Met-settled derivatives
Trading 29 967 25,642 53,415 15,508
Hedging 96,560 00,421 168,040 15,508
{Zross-geitled dorivatives
Trading — outflow 87,055 894,184 242,857 245,157
Trading — inflow {30,618) (87,932 (25,5004 (229,167)
Hedging — cutflow 121,710 121,458 404,485 438 867
Hadglhg — inflow (112,424} (112,188) (372,849) (404,578}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLIGIES {CONTINUED)

{dh)

Capital tisk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure 5o as to provide
returns for sharshalders and benefits for other stakehalders.

In ordar to optimise the capital structure, o the capital allocation amongst the Group’s
various businesses, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, lssue new shares, take on new debits or eel] assets to reduce
delt,

The Group's overall strateqy remaing unchanged from 2012,

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group manitors capital utilisation on the basis of
the gearing ratle. This ratio is calculated as total debts divided by total capital. Total debts
are calcllated as total borrowings (including “short tarm and long term borrowlhgs” as
shown in the Group's balance sheet). Total capital is calculated as the sum of ‘equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company’ as shown In the balance sheet and total
debts.

The gearing ratio a2 at 31 Dacember 2012 and 31 Dacamber 2012 waz as follows:

Sroup e Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rh'0O0 RM'OCO Br'000 RAMDO0
Tolal borrowlngs {Note 28} 10,170,852 8,408,339 10,170,852 8,409,339
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
{Mote 26) (1.380435) {2,232,731)  (1,306,828) {2,166,999)
Meat dakit 8,790,417 B,176,508 2,863,025 5,242,340
Total equity attributable 1o ecuity
helders of the Company 5,000,932 4,B60,369 4 EB94,156 473,141
13,791,349 11038877 13,588,082 10,874,481
Gearing ratiq 53.7% 8E.0% 65.4% 86.9%

The Group and the Company ars in compllance with all externally imposed capital
requirements for the financial vears ended 31 Decernber 2013 and 31 Docember 20153,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2012 {CONTINUED)

FINANGIAL RiSK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{e) Fair value measlrement

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current assets, and
trade and ather liabilities approximats thelr respective fair vaiues due to the relativaly short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The falr values of other siasses of financial
assets and [labllfties are disclosed In the respective notes to financial statements.

Letarmination of fair value and fajr valus hisrarchy

The Group’s financial instruments are measured in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Disclosure of fair valus measuremenis are by level of the following fair value
measurement higrarchy;

. Quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabllties {laval
h

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, elther directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derivad from
prices) (level 21,

’ Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {that is,
unabservable inputs) {level 3).

The following tabla presents the Group and Company's assets and llabilities that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2013, 31 Dacoember 2012,

Level 1 Leye| 2 Level3 Total
RN O00 RM'000 RR'GO0 B OO0
Group
31 Decamber 2013
Assets
Financial assets at fajr
walue through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives - 37,374 - 37,374
Derivallves used for hadging - 201 484 - 201,464
Available-for-salg finansial
assats
- Equity securitias 561,770 - 10,125 571,805
261,770 238,838 10,125 810,733
Liahilities
Financial llabkilities at fair
valus through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives - 85,823 - 85,823
Derivatives used for hedging - 185,480 - 185,480

281,313 - 281,313
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e}

Fair valus measurement {continuard)

Levs| 1 Levgf 2 Level 3 Total
Rk 000 Bh'O00 RuECO0 [R{1% elela)
Group (continusd)
31 Decembar 2012
Assets
Financlal assets ai fair
value through profit or lnss
Trading derivatives 3,548 - 3,.54R8
Darivatives usad for hedrlng 34,125 - 34,125
Availakle-for-sale financial
assets
- Equity securltles - - 308,792 308,792
- 37,673 08,782 345,465
Liabfiities
Financial liabilities at falr
value through profit or Ibss
- Trading derivativas 138,861 138,861
Derivatives used for hedging 408,766 408,766
845,827 545,627
Company
a1 Dacomber 2013
Assets
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
- Trading derivatives - 37,374 - 37,374
Derivatives used for hedging - 201,484 - 201,464
Available-for-gale financial
asssts
- Enuity securities 581,770 - - 561,770
581,770 23g,8382 - 800,803
Liabilltles
Financial liabilltlas at fair
valus through profit or losa
- Trading derivatives 85,823 85,823
Derivatives used for hedging 185,480 185,450
- 281,313 281,313

828
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NOTES TO THE FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FOLICIES (CONTINUED)

{e)  Fair valus measurement (continued)

Loval 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total
RhAGO0 R'000 RLO00 Al'CO0
Company {sentinuead)
31 Dacember 2012
Assals
Financial agsets at fair
value through profit or [oss
- Trading detlvatlves - 3,548 - 3,548
Darivatives used for hedging - 34,125 - 34,125
Availabla-for-sale financial
asanls
- Equlty securitios - - 285,982 295,982
- 37,6873 295,582 333,655
Liakilities
Financial llabilities at fair
value through profft or loss
- Trading derivatives - 136,861 - 136,861
Darivatives used for hedging - A08,766 - 408,766

545,827 - 240,827

Financlal tnstrumenis are classified as Level 1 if their vaive is observable in an actlve market,
Sueh instrumenta are valued by reference 1o unadjusted quoted prices for identical assests or
llabilities in active rmarkets whers the quoted prices is readlly available, and the price
represents actual and regufarly occurring market transactions. An active market ie one in
which transactions occur with sufficlent valume and frequency to provide pricing informatlan
on an on-going basis, These would include actively traded listed equities and activety
exchanga-traded derivativas.

YWhere fair value iz determined using unguetad market prices In iess active markets or quoted
prices for similar assets and liabilities, such Instruments are generally classified as Level 2. In
cases whera quoted prices are generally not available, the Group then determines falr vaiya
bassd upon valuation techniguss that use as inputs, market parameters including But not
limited to vield curves, volatlities and foreign exchange rates. The majority of valuation
tachniques employ only observable markst data and so refiability of the fair valus
rmeasurement is high. These would Include certain bonds, govamment bonds, carporate debt
securities, repurchase and reverse purchase agreements, loans, credit derivatives, sertain
issusd notes and the Group's over the counter (OTC™ derivatives. Specific valuation
technlgues used to value financial instruments includes:
* The fair value of Interest rate swaps Is calculated as the present valus of the estimated
future cash flows based on observable yvield curves;
* The fair value of forward forsign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present valus:
= Thefair value of fusl swap contracts is determined using forward fuel price at the balance
sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.
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{Incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 ({CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(&)

Fair value measurgment (cortinuad}

Financial instruments are classified as Level 3 If their valuation incorporates significant inputs
that are not based on observable market data {unabservable inputs). Such inputs are
genetally determined based on obssrvable inputs of a similar nature, historical cbservations
on the level of the input or other analytical technigues, including discounted cash flow
projections.

In the currant financlal year, the Group's investments in Tune Insurance Holdings Berhad and
AirAsia X Berhad, classified as available-for-sals financial assets, were listed on tha Main
Markel of Bursa Securities Malaysia following an initial public offering of shares. Thiz resulted
in a tranefer from a Level 3 instrumant to & Level 1 instrument in the current financial year as
the investments are now cheervable in an active matket,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

fa)

Flnancial instruments by catagory

Assets at

fair value

through  Derivatives
Loans and  the profit used for  Available
recelvables _and loss hedging . forsale Tolal

AM'000  RM'OO0 RMOO0  RAMO00 RMOOD
Group

Asgsels a8 per balance sheet
Available-for-zale financial

assets - - - 571,885 571,885
Heceivables excluding

prepayments - 808,913 - - - BOB 913
Amcuntz due from

associates 1,297,825 - - - 1,287 825
Amounts due frorn |oint

venfures 343,703 - - - 33,702
Armounts dug from related

parties 8,113 - - - 6,113
Derivative financial

instruments - 37,374 201,464 - 23R 438
Ceposaits, cash and bank

balances 1,380,435 - - - 1,380,435
Total 3,325,089 37,374 201,464 571,885 4135822
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{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

fa) Finaneial instruments by category (nontinued)

Group (continued)

31 December 2013 (continued)

Liahiiities as per balance sheot
Borrowlngs {excluding finance
lzase lighilities)

Liabilitias

at fair value
through

the profit
__and Jogs

RK'000

Other
financial
Merivatives labilltles at -
used for  amortised
hedging .Gost Total
BMO00 RI'GO0 RK'000

9,360,025 9,360,025

FInance |ease lighilitias - - BI0LB27 810,327
Derivative financlal instrements BE 823 165,400 - 2B1,313
Trade and other payables - - 7440908 744,998
Amount due to an associate - 681,325 51,328
Ameount dug to a related parky 15,145 15,145
Total B5B23 195,480 10,992,321 11,273,534
Azgeis at
fair value
thraugh  Detlvatives
l.aans and  the profit uged for  Available
receivables _andloss __ hedging for sale Total
R'000 Br'000 RhOO0 Rha00 RM'0D0
31 December 2012
Assats as per balance sheat
Available-for-sale financial
assets - 303, 7gz 308,752
Receivables excliding
prepayments 650,705 - 650,705
Amounts due from assoclates 806,452 - 806,452
Aot due from a joint
venture 10,765 - 10,785
Amount dug from a redated
party 1,282 1,282
Carivative financlal
instruments - 3,548 34,125 37,673
Daposlts, cash and bank
balancas 2,232,731 - -~ 223273
Totat 3,701,835 3,548 308,732 4,048,400

34,125

ST
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)

fa) Financial instruments by catagory {continued)
Liabilities Other
at fair value financial
through  Derivatives liabilitios at
the profit used for  amortisad
and loss . _hedging cost Tota[
RM'0O0 M OO0 RiA'000 B OG0
Group {continued)
31 December 2012 {continued)
Lighilities as par balance sheet
Borrowings {excluding finance
leass liabilities) - V.584.086 7594086
Finance lease liabilitiss - - B15.253 815,253
Darlvatlve flnancial instruments 136,861 408,768 . 545 627
Trade and other payables - 666,148 666,148
Armount dues to an associate - 54,489 R4 489
Amount due 1o a related party - 12,630 12,838
Total 136,861 408,786 9,142,625 9,6BR 252
Assols at
fair valus
thirough  Derivatives
Loans and  the profit used for  Available
teceivables _and loss hedging for salg Tota)
B 000 RM'000 HIM'OG0 RAOO0 Ai'000
Company
51 December 2013
Asseis as per balance shoot
Available-for-sale financial
assots - 581,770 BE1,770
Receivables excluding
prepaymants 572,784 - E72, 784
Amounts due from
subsidiaries 191,120 - 193,120
Armounts due frorm associates 1,187,938 - 1,167,025
Amounis dug from joint
ventures 11,451 - 11,431
Amounts dee fram related
partiss 6113 - 8,113
Derivative financial
Inatruments - 37,374 201 4684 pcect: ok
Ceposits, cash and bank
balances 1,306 926 - 1,305,825
Total 22663110 37,374 201,484 581,770 4,058,818
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

{a) Financial instruments by category (continusad)
Liahilities Other
at fair value financial
ihrough  Derivatives liabllities at
the profit used for  amottised
and lpss hedgng cost Tota)
RM'000 R 000 HM'000 RMOO0
Company (continued)
31 Docamber 2013 {continued})
Liabilities as per balance shesl
Borrowings (excluding finance
ioase llabillties) - - B360,025 8,380,025
Finance leasea |labillties - - B10&27 810,827
Derjvative financial instrumeants 85 823 195,480 - 281,213
Trade and othar payahles - 860,300 650,309
Amount due to g subsidiary 10,185 10,185
Amount dua to an associate 61,326 61,326
Amount due to a jeint veniure 161 151
Amount dus to a related party 15,145 15,145
Total B5 B22 185,480 10,517,968 11,199,281
Assetz at
fair value
through  Derivatives
Loans and  the profit Usedfer  Available
racelvables _andioss. | hedging for sals Total
BWO00 HM' D00 RLOGO RGO
31 Decambar 2012
Assets as per balance sheot
Available-for-sale financial
ascets - - - 2495 982 295 982
Recalvables excluding
prepaymeants 817,227 617 227
Amounis dues from
subsidiaries 174,730 174,730
Amounts dus from associates 730,885 780,585
Amounts dug from joint
vanturas ' - 3,085
Amounts dua from a related
parties - 1,282
Darivative finansial
ingtruments 3,548 34,125 - 37 673
Deposits, cash and bank
balances 2,168,995 “ - - 2,186,808
Trdal 3,744 280 3.548 34,125 205,582 4,077 944
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)

{a) Financial instrumants by category (continued)
Linbilities Other
at falr value _ flnancial
through  Derlvatives fiahilitios at
the profit used for  amortised
and loss  __hedging cost Total
RM'000 ARTOOCS  RM'O00  RAFOO0

Caormpary {contlnued)
3 Decernber 2012 {continued)

Liaktlities as per halance shest
Borrowings (excluding finahce

lease liabilities} -
Finance lease llabilities

7.504,086 7554088
- 815283 815253

Derivative financial instrumants 135,281 408,766 . Hdk BET
Trade and ather payables - - B3BO0OY  B3B.007
Amount due to an associgte - - 83,052 B8 052
Amount dus to a related party - - 12,830 12 839
Total 136,861 408,766 2,12B.037 96734664

fb) GCredit quality of financial aszets

The credit quality of financial assets that ars neither past due nor impalred can be assessed
by reference to oxternal credit ratings (if availatde) or to historical information about
counterparty defaull rales:

Group
2013 22
RIOO0 RA'DO0
Counterpariies without extarnal credit rating
Group 1 13,198 2693
Group 2 83,752 83,823
Total trade recelvables that are neither past due nar impaired 85,850 88,318
Cash at bapk and shert term bank deposits
AAS to A 1.370.417 1,788,459
BEB to BA 10,018 444 232

1,380,435 2232731

[~
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)

e} Credit guality of financial assets {continusd)

. Group
2013 2012
B 000 RM'000

Derivative financial assets
Al 1o Ad 43,376 18,744
Ato BEB- 185 462 18,885
238 ,B3B 37,673

Loans o related paries

Group 2 1,237,066 TBO, 985

Group 1 — New customers/ralated partles (fess than 6 monthg)

Group 2 ~ Exlsting customers/related parties {mors than 8 months) with ne defaults in the
past,

Group 3 — Exleting customersirelated parties (meors than 6 months) with same dafaults in the
past,

All defaults were fully recovered.

All other receivables and deposits ars substantially with existing counterparties with no
histary of default. '
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVES

The effects of the changes on the Group and Company's financial statemaents are as follows:

Group . Company
As As
previously  Effects of Az previously  Effects of As
reporied reclass- rastated repotte reciass- restated
J12Me -ification 1.1.2012 1.1.2012 -ificaticn 1.1.2012
RAM OO0 HAROO0 RGO Rk 000 Rh'DOG RI'000
Balance sheet
Mon-cyrrent assets
Recalvables and
prepayments 15,5644 360,503 378,051 15,648 360,503 476,051
cument ageats
Racalvables and ]
plepayments 1,108,775 (360,503) 748272 1,081,125 {360,503 720 B2z
Currant liabllitles
Trade and other
payables {1,137 232 403,628 (727,604} (1,102,083) 403, 528 (893,435}
Mon-guratt labilities
Other payables and
accruals - 409,628)  {400.623) (400 528)

=

(406,628

(it Prepayments and deposits relating to aircraft overhacl and mainterance which were previously
classifled as current agsets have been reclassifisd to non-current assets to be consistent with
the period in which the prepayments and deposits are to be ullllsed.

(i} Accruals relating to alreraft maintenance which were previously classilied as current llabilities
have besn reclassifled to non-current liabilities to be consistent with the period in which the
accruals are'to be settled.

{I) Deposlts received from sub-lessees which were previously ineluded in amounts dus from/(to)
associates within current assets and current llabilities have now been reclassifled to armounts
dua o associates in non-current liabillties t be consistent with the period in which the deposits

ars to ba utllised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)

The effects of the changes on the Group and Compary’s flnancial statements are as follows:
{continued}

} Group oL _Company

Asg As
previouzly Eifects of As  previously  Effects of Az
reparted raclass- restated reported réclass- restated

S1L12.2012 dficatfon 31.12.2012 31122012 -iflcation  31.12.2012
RR'00G R0 RRT'0G0 RAO00 BMO00 R 000

Balance sheet

Mon-current azsats
Receivables and
prapaymeants £3.741 585,274 513,415 28149 odGE 274 £13.415

Current ggoets
Receivables and

prapayments 1,367,094 (585,274} 771,820 1,323,614 (585274} 738,340
Amounts due from
associgtes 331,407 20,4687 358,874 331,407 - a2, 407

Currant liabllities
Trade and ather

payables {1,285,065) B2R 917 (BBE148Y {1,268 924} 628 917 (638,007)
Amaunt dus to an

associate (29,038 28,032 - (68,052 54,498 {13,553
Nen-eurrand liabilities
Othar payables - {628,817y {628,917} - (628,917} {828,817}
Amounts due to

assorciates - {54,493} (54,459) - (54.,499) (54,404}

In addition, for the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the presentation of the mcome
statement has been changed te include the Group's share of results of joint vantures and associates
within aperating profit as it better reflects the performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

CHANMGE OF ACCOUNTING POLICY

in 2012, the Group’s effective intersst in Thai AirAsia Co. Lid {*TAA") was reduced from 48.9% to
45%, followlng the initial public offering of Asia Awviation Pls, the major shareholder of TAA. As g
consequence of the reduction In sharehaolding, TAA ceased to be a joint venture of the Group and
became an associate of the Group, Accordingly, in the previous financial year, the Group reclassified
its investment in. TAA from investment in joint ventures to investment in associates. In ascordance
with MFRS 131 "Interest in Joint Venlures™, this resultad in a gain on disposal of the 4% equity
interast of BMi18.6 million and a fair value gain on the remaining 45% equity interest retained i
TAA of BM1,041.7 million, which was preseniad in the previous year's incoms statement as a “Fair
value and gain on disposal of Interest in Thaf AirAsia Co Lid".

During the currenl financial year, the Group adopted MFRS 128 "Investments in Assoclates and
Joint Ventures”. MFRS 128 states that where an entity loses joint control over a joint verture but
retaing significant Influence, the entity will continue to equity account for Its interest, However, the
entity doas not re-measure fis continued ownership interest at falr value, This standard is applisd
ratrespectively. As such, the income staterment for the financial year ended 31 Decomber 2012 had
been restated to reflect tha requiremants of MFRS 128,

The effacts of the changes on the Group’s financial statements are as follows:

— Group
Flnancial year ended 31 December 2012
As previously Effacts of As
reporied restatoment restatad
BRO00 RI"D00 BLGO0
Ineome statement
Fair valug and galn on disposal of
inlerast In Thal AirAsia Co Lid 1,160,370 {1.041,730) 118,840
Basic and diluted earmings per sharg
Mei profit for the financial year 1,831,338 {1,041,730) 788,608
Welghted averags number of ordinary shares
in issue {000) 2 775,057 - 2779057
Basic aarnings per share {sen) £5.9 28.4
Met profit for the financial year 1,831,338 {1.041,730) 789,608
Weighted averagse number of ordinary sharas
in issue {"O00) 2778057 - 2,779,057
Adjustment for £E80S {'000) 3124 . 3,124
Walghted average number of ordinary shares
for diluted eamings per share {000} 2782181 2,782,181
Dilutad sarnings per share (sen) 65.8 28.4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)}

GHANGE OF ACCOUNTING POLICY {CONTINUED)

The effects of the changes on the Group’s financlal statements are as follows: {continued)

. GEroup
A3 December 2012
As previously Ag
reported Effects of restated
_ 3122012 restalernant 21.12.2012
Ri'000 RR'O00 BR000
Balance sheet
Monm-gyrrent assets
Investments in assockates 1,204 575 (1,041,730 162,845
Ratained sarmings 4,273,311 (1,041,730 3,231,581

p——
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NOTES TC‘J THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

UNCONSOUDATED STRUSTURED ENTITIES

The Cempany has set up Merah entities, special purpose companies ("SPCY pursuant to aircradt
related borrewings obtaifed from various financial institutions. LInder the arrahgement, the Company

anters into an Alrcraft Instalmant Sale Agreement with the SPC, permitting the Company to possass
and operate each of the Airbus A320 aircratt financed under the facility.

The SFC are orphan trist companias in which the Company has no equity interest. The SPC did not
incUr any losses o sarh any income during tha financial year ended 31 December 2013. The aircraft

art the correspending term laans and finance costs associated with the SPC have been recognised
by the Group and Company upon the purchase of the aircraft.

The Group and Company does not provide any finansial support to the SPC or have any contraciual

obligation to make good the losses, if any.

Tha delails of the Marah antitios are as follows:

. Country of
Name Incorporation
Merah Satu Limited Labuan,
Malaysia
kerah Tiga Limited Labuan,
Malaysia
-Merah Empat Sdn Bhd Malaysla
Werah Lima Limited Labuan,
Malaysla
Marah Enam Limitad Labuan,
halaysia
Meraﬁ Tujuh Limited Labuan, -
Malaysia

Marah Sembilan OM-AFX Sdn Bhe  Malaysia

kzrah Sepuluh Limited - Lakuan,
Walaysia
Merah Sebelas Limited Labuar,
Malaysia
Marah Duabelas Limited Eabuan,
Malaysia
Marah Tlgabalas Limited Labuan,
Mai_a}'ai_a_
hMarah Empatbalas Lirmlted Labuan,

Malaysia

111

Purpoze

Aircraft financing special purpose company

Adreraft financing special purposs company

Alreraft financing special purpese company

Alreraft financing spectal purpose company
Aircraft financing special purpose compary
Alrcrail financing speclal purpose company

Airerafi finaneing special purpose company

Adrcraft flmancing special purpusg company
Aircraft financing speclal purpose company
Aircraft financing spet;ial PLrpose company
Ajreraft financing special purpose company

Aireraft financing spacial purpose company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED!

UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES {CONTINUED)

The details of the Merah entities are as {ollows: {continued)

Mamsg

Marah Enambelas Limitad
Merah Lapanbelas Limited
Merah Duapuluh Limitsd

Marah Duapuluhsatu Limited
Merah Cuapuluhtiga Limited
Merah Duapuluhlima Limited
YWerah Duapuluhtuj.uh Limitad
Marah Buaptuluhlapan Limited
Merah Duapuluhesmblian Limited

terah Tigapuluh Limited

Country of
incarporati

on

Furpose

Lablaan,
Malaysia

Labuan,
Malaysia

Labuan,
Malaysia

l.abuan,
Malayaia

Labuan,
Malaysla

Labuan,
Malzysia

Labuam,
Malaysla

Labugah,
Kalaysia

Laliean,
Malaysia

Labiuan,
WMalaysia

112

Ajrcraft financing special purpose company
Alrcraft flnancing special purposs company
Airgrast financing special purpose company
Aijrcraft financing special purposs company
Ajreraft financing s.peciai PUNPOES GOMmpany

Aircraft financing special purpose company

Alreraft financing special purpose company

Ajrcrat financing special purpsse company
Ajrgraft financing special purposs comparny

Adrcraft sinancing special purpose company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO BURSA MALAYSIA
SECURITIES LISTING REQUIREMENT

The following analysis of reallsed and unrealised retained profits at the legal antity leved Is prepared
in accordance with the Guidance on Speclal hMatter WMol — Detarmination of Realised and
Unreallsed Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysla Securities
Berhad Listing Requirsmants, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. This disclosure is
based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad,

The Group has adopted MFRS 128 “Investmsnts in Associates and Joint Venturas” during the
current financial year. This standard has been applied retrospectively in restating the retained
Barnings as at 31 December 2012 (Note 400,

—. Group  __ Company
2013 2012 2013 2012,
RK1'000 RAQGO0 RM'000 RMGO0
{restated)
Total retained earnings of AirAsia Berhad

and its subsidlaries: _
- Realisad 2358327 2,184,802 2,114,139 2,175,079
- Unrealised 512,256 1,048,133 506,431 927,725

2,870,583 3,230,835 2,820,570 3,102,804

Total share of assumulated gains/(lnsses)
from assoclated companies: .
- Haallsed 33,228 {3,435} - -

Total share of acoumulated gains frotn
joint ventures
- Realised 22 680 9,081 - -

Total retalned earnings as per
consolidated financiat stalemants 2,928,491 3,231,581 2,820,670 3,102,804

The disclosurg of realised and unrealised profits above is sclely for compliance with the directive
izsued by the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and should not be applied for any gther PUINOSES.
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES AGT, 1965

We, Datuk Karmarudin Bin Meranun and Aireen Omar, heing two of the Directors of Airdsia Berhad,
state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements sst out on pages 6 fo 112 are
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company as at 31
Decembar 2013 and of the results and the cash flows of the Group and Company for the financial
year ended on that date in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Raporting Standards and the provigions of the Companies Act, 1965.

The information set cut in Mote 42 to the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Guidance on Special Maiter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in
the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Sscurities Berhed Listing Requirements, as
issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

In accordance with & resolution of the Board of Direstors dated 28 Appi]

DATUK KAMARUDIN BIN MERANLUN AIREEN OMAR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 169{16} GF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

|, Rozman Bin Omar, the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of AirAsia
Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements sst out on pages 6 to 112
are, in my opinion, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to
be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Decfarations Act, 1960,

T

R N OMAR

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Rozman Bin Ormar at Petaling Jaya |n
Malaysia on 28 April 2014, befora mea. . T

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS

/3-1, Black B2

- oo » Jalan PILF 11424,
aran 'ritmg, 4 Petaling Jaya
Relanpor .ﬁ%’ F.hsang »
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TOTHE MEMBERS OF AIRASIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia}
(Cumpany MNo. 28460 W)

REPORT ON TR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the financial statements of AirAsia Berhad on pages & to 112, which eomprise the

balance sheels a3 ul 31 Devember 201y of the Groop and of the Company, and the statemenls of
ncome, ecomprehensive ineome, chuages in equity and cash fivws of the Group and of the Company for

‘the {inaneial year then ended, and a summury of significant acecunting policies and other explumatary

notes, az sl ol in Notes 1 ta 41,

Drrecirrs' Responsibility for the Financial Stadements

The Dhrectors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statoments that give a
true and fair view in accordanec with Maluysian Financial Reporting Stundards, Inlernational
Financial Reporting Standardys and the Companies Aet, 1965, and for such internal rontrol az the
1Yirectars determine arc neecssary io ensble the preparation of financial statements that ate free from
material misstatement, whether duc to frand or errar,

Anditnrs' Besponsihility

Our responsibility is to cxpress an apinion on these financial statements based on our andit. We
conducted cur andil in accordance with approved standurds on awditing in Malaysia, Those slandards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the andit to obitain reasonalife
assurance whether the financial statemen s are free from material misstalement.

An autlit invelves perferming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclogures
in the financial statements. The procedurss selected depend on onr judpment, inchuding the
mssessmaent of risks of malsril misstatement of the Tingneial statements, whether due to Fand or
error, In making those risk assessments, we consider imlernal control relevant lo the cntily's
prepatalion. of the fnaecial statements thut give a true and fair view in order to desim audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanees, bul not for the purpose of expressing ah opinion
vn the effectiveness of the entity’s intermal control. An audit also includes evuluating the
appropriateness of accounting policles wsed and the reasemabléness of aceounting estimales made hy
the Diveclors, as well us evaleating the overall presentation of the finaneial sldements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basig [o
aur audit opinion. :

PriretnoterionseCoopers {AF 1146), Charfered Accounlonts,
Level 10, £ Sentral, Jalan Traners, Kunle Lunigur Sentral, P.O. Box 10102, 50706 Kealz Tumpar, Meeleyista
T: -60(2) 2074 1088, I 460 (9 2e7g 1288, wnasn 30 ue.com Mg
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INDEPENDENT AUDI'TORS REPORT

TOTHE MEMBERS OOF AIRASIA BERITAD {CONTINULLY
{Incorporated in Balayeia)

(Company No, 284660 W)

EEPORT ONTHT FINANUTAL STATTR NS (CONTINTIRD

Cpindon

I our vpinion, the financial statements give a tene and fair view of he finaneial pasition of the Group
and of the Company as of 21 Necember 2014 and of their finaneial performance and eash Fows for the
fmancial year then ended in aceordance with Malaysian Finuncial Reporting Slandurds, Intemational
Finuneial Reporting Standurds und the Companies Act, 1065. '

EEPORT Ok OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companiss Act, 1065 in Malaysia, we also report Lhe
fullvwing:

a)  In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to.he
Lept by the Company and its subsidiaries of which. we have acted asz anditors have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

b) We have considered the financial statcments and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted az awditors, which are indicated in Nole 13 to the financial
statemncnts,

i) We are salisfied that the fnancial statements of the subsidiaries Ihat have been conzolidaled

with the Company's finaneial stalements are i form and content appropriste and proper for
the purposcs ot the preparation of the Mancial statements of the Group and we have received
satiafetory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

] The audit reparts on the financial skatements of the subsidiades did not contain any
qualification ar any adverse comment made under Section 17403} of the Act.

(VHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

‘The supplementary information set out in Note 42 on page 113 is discloged o mect the requdrcment of
Burse Malaysia Securities Berhad and {¢ not part of the financial statements. The Directors are
tespunsible for the prepuration of the supplementary information in aceordance with Guidance on
Special Matter No. 1, Delerininution of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of
Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Sceurfties Berhad Listing Fegnirements, ag issucd lw the
Malaysia Inslitute of Accountants (FMIA Guidanee™ and the dircetive of Bursa Malavsia Seomrilies
Berhad. In enr opinivn, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respeets, in
‘accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Sceurities Berhad.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

T THE MEMEBERS OF ATRASIA BERIIAD (CONTINUEL)
(Inrarporated in Malaysia)

(Company No. 284660 W)

OVHACR MATTERS

This Teport is made seleky to the members of the Conpany, as a Lody, in seeordance with Seution 174
of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpase. We i not assume responsihility to
any other persen for the content of Lhis report.

PRICEWA I RITOT IRY N CEMRGE LUIS MENEZS
Na. Al 1146) (W anio b6 14 (I
Churtered Acenuntants CharteredHecountant

s

Kuala Lumppir
a8 April no1g
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